UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 06-20001-CR-LENARD/TORRES(s)

UNITED STATFES OF AMERICA
v.

LUIS ALFREDO DAZA MORALES,
a/k/a “Ternansdo,”

Defeadant.,
/

GOVERNMENT’S FACTUAL PROFFER
IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT DAZA’S GUILTY PLEA

Hed this case gune (o ial, the government would huve proved with competent
evidence and beyond a reasenable doubt that, from approximatcly September 27, 2005,
through January 3, 72006, Luis Alfredo Daza Moralcs (“Daza™) conspired to provids
material support and resources to the Revalutionary Armed Forces of Colombia (ihe
“FARC™), in violatiou ol 18 U.S.C. § 2339B. The FARC is « designated foreign terrorist
otganization under 18 U.S.C. § 2339B(z)(6).

L Elements of il@ Offense

Count One of the superseding indictment charges the defendaut with Conspiracy
to Provide Material Support or Recources to a Toreign Terrorist Organization in violation
of 18 U.S.C. § 23398, To find Mr. Daza guilty of Count 1, it must be deteimined that the
government could have proved each of the following beyond a reasonable doubt:

1. That betwean September 27, 2005, and Oclwber 31, 2005, Mr.
Daza agroed with anather person(s);



B To provide material support or resources;'

5 To a foreign terrorist organizaticur;

4, Kuowing rhat the crganization
2. is a designated terrarisi nrganization; .
h Has engaged or cngages in tenorist activity;” or
C. Has engaged or engages in torrorism.”

5. That Mr. Daza knowingly #nd voluntarily participatcd in the
agreement; and

6. That & cunspitator committed an overt act in fuutleerance of the
agresment.

The goveiument mnst also prove beyond a rcasonable doubt that 2 jurisdictional
clement under [8 U.S.C. § 2339B(d)(1) is ~atisfied. Generally, there is extraten itorial
tederal jurisdictiun over the offense of Conspiracy to Provide Material Support or
Resources 10 a Designated Foreign Terrorist Organization. 18 U.S.C. § 2339R(d)(2).
Furthermote, this Court has jurisdiction of Mr. Daza’s offtnse because (j) after the
conduct required for the offense occuried, the defendant was brought into the: United
States, cven i the conduct required for the offense ocenrred outside the United States (18
U.S.C. § 2339B(d)(1)(C)); (i1) the vunspiracy ultimately occurred in parl within the

Uniled Srates (18 U.S.C, § 2339B(d)(1)(DY); (iii) (he offense affested interstate or furcign

! “Marerial support or resowices” is defined ag, among other things: “auy .., SCIvice, . . . rainng, expert
advice or assistance, . . . false documsntation or identificativn, . . . and Tansportaton.” 18U.S.C, §
2339A(M)(1). “lraining" is defined as “insluction or reaching designed to impart & specific skill, as
opposed to genernl kmowledge,” 18 U.S.C. § 2339A(b)(2). "Expert advice of assistunce’” I3 dofined as
“advice ot assistance derived from scientific, technical or other spevidlized kmowledge,” 14 US.C. §
2339A(b)(3)

* “Terronst Activity" i3 defined us eny acrivity nnlawtul under the laws of the place where it is comamitted
and which involves, amang other things, highjacking or sabutaye, threatening to kall others in order to
cuinpel 4 third person 16 do or ebstain from doiug «n #ct, vialent attacks upen intemationslly protected
persons, assacgination, bombings, und threars, artempte, or conspiracies to do (hese things  INA §
212(aXA)BYiii). )

¥ “Teuyism™ is defined as “pjremeditatsd, politically mulivated vinlenoe perpetusted against
noncombatant targets by subnational groups or clandestine agents.” Forcign Relations Authouization Arr §
140(d)(2) (19€9).



commeree (18 U.S.C. § 2339B(d)(1)(E)); and (iv) the defendant conspired willi persons
over whom jusisdiction exits (I8 U.S.C. § 2339D(d)(1)(F)). i.e. co-conspirators
Salamanea and Ulloa, who were charped with Material Support. Aliea Sinuggling, and, in
Salamanca's case, Money Laundering.

1.  The Goveromcnt’s Proof

On Seplember 27, 2005, in Bogota, Colombin, co-defendants Jose Tito Libio
Ulloa Melo and Victor Dauic] Salamanca arranged Mr. Daza’s introduction to “Hennt”
and “Jolu1 Juim.* Daza, who described himscif ax # 19-year veteran analyst with the
Department of Adminisuative Security (“DAS”) (a Colombian ferleral law enforcement
agency), ulfered 1o provide “Henri’s™ traveling axsnciates with unencumbcered passaye
through Bogota’s Inteqmational Airport for their trip to the United States. Daza stated that
I had provided this service for others in the past.

Mr. Daza kaew that the proposed travel to the United States was illegal becausc
lie had reviewed and then commented on the yuality of the fraudulent Spanish passports
that Salamanca and defendant jalal Sadat had obtained for “Henri” and his associatcs,
Nonetheless, Daza stated that he would surange for an entire DAS team of airport
immigration ufficials o coordinate the sruggling of Hend 's associates through all
immigration controls at Bogota’s International Airport. Mr, Daza cxplained that the
ftavclm would go 0 an airport waiting arca where a NDAS official would have their
names ready. Daza promised that #n enrire shift of airport immigration officials would be
in on the sclerne, and he clarified that he would be responsible for all DAS coodination

In addition, he would ariange in pay their airport exit tax.



Mr, Daza stressed, huwever, that he needed to run the (slse paseports through an
Interpol datthase 10 ensure that the names wene not listed on any intcrnational lugitve or
watch lists, The problem, Darx explained, was “|ilf the persun who appears on the . . .
document, ou the passport, or the person that’s going 10 travel, has a problem in the
Unitad States, they receive hiim with open arms and they grah him right away.”
Therefine, Daza required that he verify the names in order to avoid such a sitnation
Salamanca statcd that “Henri™ should give the passports to Jalal and that Salamanca
would then give them o Daza for his review.

During the mecling, Daza also instructed “Henri” aml his associates on the proper
way Lo enter immigration screcning points He showed them how to hauul a passport to
an immigration officer so as to give the mpression of being a Buropean. He strossed that
the travelers must also act confidently like Europeans as they approach the immigration
officer, and advised thern o rake a small amount of clothing in a simple suitcase and a
small carry on. He 2lso told them not to use the phones to communicate hecause the
authorities “have wirs (apping all over."

On September 29, 2005, Daza mer with Salamanca, Ulloa, “Ilenri,” and ‘‘John
Jaire,” During the meeting, “Henri” explained to Daza, Salamanca, and Ulloa that he and
liis associates were conducting business un behalf of the FARC, In response, Daza
Jokingly said that (he price would thereforc double. Stwrily thereafter, howcver, in all
seriousnese, he sought to convince “Henti™ and “Yohn Jaire” that lic was able to complete
the job and would ensure that their departure was handled carefully. “John Jairo” alsu
clarified to Daza, Ulloe, and Salamanca that he and his associates were nn 4 mission to

launder moncy from the: United States to Colombia for the FARC. Daza suggested that,



before traveling, “Henri” and “John Jairo™ incet personally with the airport ufficial that
would directly facilitate thieir deparmure so that thcy would fee] mote comfortable with the
deal.

At that time, Daza knew that the FARC ¢ngaged i (errorism and terronist activity.
As a resident of Bogota, Colombia, he was familiar with the FARC becausc of ifs
widespread prevalence within Colombian culturc and socicly. He knew that the FARC
cngaged in, among other things, highjackings, assassinations, bombings, and pulitically
motivated violence against noncombatants.

On October 8, 2005, Daza introduce| Salamanca, Ulloa, “Ilenn,” and “John
Jairo” to his airport imuuigration contact. During their meting, the contact stated that he
had evicwed the fraudulent passports am! then made clear that “Ilenni” zod his associates
were only paying for passags: (hrough the Bogota airpoit. Passage through the Miami
airport was nl part of the deal.

Mr. Daza’s contact lold “Henri” and “John Jaiio" that their travelers werc in linc
behind others who were being smuggled through the airport in the coming, week. The
contact also instructed them that, on the day of travel, they should waitin a certain arca
of the terninal becanse it was not monitored by airport surveillance. He also told them
that he would advise them which inspection line they should use when going through
inunigrarion, and that the names on their fraudulent passports had been cleared through
Intempol.

On October 13, 2005, Mr. Daza snd his airport contact again met with Salamanca,
Ulloa, “Henri,” and “Tohn Jairo,” The airport contact expiained that he had been unable

to facilitate: (he travelers’ departures bevause of heightened security at the airport due to



recent threats to the Culombian govemment. He stated that Mights to the United Statcs
are more closely scrutinized than other int=rnational flights. ‘The contact also stated that
he would not mect with “Henri” and “John Jairo” again lexuse he thought 1t was too
risky for him. He said that Daza would represent him in any future meetings.

On October 22, 2005, Daza, Ulloa, Salamanca, “Henri,” and “John Jairo” again
et to discuss the travelers® trp to the United States, Daza stated that e had picked the
travel dates, aud thar on the day of travel, he would pay the airport tax and instruct them
in derail where to wait and which inmigration checkpoint to usc. Mr. Daza also
cxplained a contingency plan it the travclers were stopped at the sirport. Ho stated that
the airport officials pacticipating in the travelers™ departure would not know that the
travelers werc FARC members for added protection aguinst leaks of the smuggling plan.

On Qctober 28, 2005, Mr Daza and another onc of his airport DAS contacts
picked up three of Henri’s associatcs, all of whom he thought were working fos the
FARC, and began driving them (o the airport. Daza’s contact in (he car asked to review
the travelers' passports during a stop along the way. During the stop, Daza’s conluct
mentioned that the immigration stamps in the passports were nat sufficient and that they
appeated to be under surveillance by the police. Daza's contact refused to continue to the
airport. John Jairo then gave Daza the passports and Davx said he would correct the
faully immigration stamps.

On October 31, 2003, Mr, Daza met with his airpot! contact to coordinatc anothet
smuggling attempt through Bogota's Intemational Airport. Daza’s contact lold him that
the police were filming them and that the deal was ol Daza's ability to provide suppuort

to “Henri” and his associates thercfare ceased to exist,



On February 21, 2006, Mt. Daza was arrested by Columnbian authorities pursuant
to 2 U.S. provizional arrest warrant. On Maich 19, 2007, after his extradition was
approved by Colombian autharities, Daza was brought to th Southern District of Flonda
and mads his #ppearance before U.S. Magisimte Judge Garber on March 20, 2007,

III.  Conclusion

Baseil un the foregoing, the goveimment respectfully submits that it would have
proved at trial beyond a ieasonable doubt that between Sepirunber 27, 2003, end January
3, 2006, I.uis Alfredo Daza Morales knowingly sgreed to providc material xupport ot
resources to & designated foreign terrorist organization, within the extraterritorial
jurisdiction of the United States, in violation uf 18 U.S.C. § 2339D. This proffer is being
submitted tn suppott of Mr. Daza's guilty plea. As such it does not contain all the
inforuation known either to the United Siales of Mr. Daza,

Respectfully submined,

ALICE S. FISHER
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAT.
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